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Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets.

On January 31, 2019, First Busey Corporation, a Nevada corporation (“First Busey”), completed its previously announced merger (the “Merger”) with The
Banc Ed Corp., a Delaware corporation (“Banc Ed”), pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated August 21, 2018, by and between First Busey and
Banc Ed (the “Merger Agreement”). Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, Banc Ed was merged into First Busey with First Busey remaining as the
surviving entity. On February 1, 2019, First Busey filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission to report the
completion of the Merger and other related matters. The purpose of this filing is to amend the Form 8-K filed on February 1, 2019 to include the information
required by Items 9.01(a) and (b).

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(a) Financial Statements of Business Acquired.
The audited consolidated financial statements of The Banc Ed Corp. and its Subsidiary (TheBank of Edwardsville) as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 and for each of the two years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, as well as the accompanying notes thereto and the related Independent
Auditors’ Report, are filed herewith as Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Pro Forma Financial Information.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet of First Busey as of December 31, 2018 and the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined income statement of First Busey for the year ended December 31, 2018, are filed herewith as Exhibit 99.2 and incorporated herein by
reference.

(d) Exhibits.

23.1  Consent of BKD, LLP

99.1  Audited consolidated financial statements of The Banc Ed Corp. and its Subsidiary (TheBank of Edwardsville) as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 and for each of the two years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, as well as the accompanying notes thereto and the related
Independent Auditor’s Report.

99.2 Unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet of First Busey as of December 31, 2018 and the unaudited pro forma condensed

combined income statements of First Busey for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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Signature

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

Date: April 18, 2019 FIRST BUSEY CORPORATION

By: /s/ Robin N. Elliott
Name:  Robin N. Elliott
Title: Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 23.1

BKn One Matropolitan Square | 211 N, Broadway, Sulte 400 | 5t. Louis, MO £3102-2733

CPAs & Advisors 214,231 5544 | Fax 314.231.9731 | bkd.com

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the inclusion in this Form 8-K/A filing dated April 18, 2019, of First Busey Corporation of our report dated March 26, 2019, on our audits of
the consolidated financial statements and internal control over financial reporting of THE BANC ED CORP., as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and for the
years then ended.

/s/ BKD, LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
April 18, 2019
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BKD One Metropolitan Square | 211 N. Broadway, Suite 500 | St. Louis, MO 63102-2733

CPAs & Advisors 314.231.5544 | Fax 314.231.9731 | bkd.com

Independent Auditor’'s Report

Board of Directors
THE BANC ED CORP.
Edwardsville, Illinois

Report on the Financial Statements and Internal Control

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of THE BANC ED CORP., and its
subsidiary (the “Company™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018
and 2017, and the related consohdated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

We also have audited THE BANC ED CORP.’s internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in the Infernal Conirol — Integrated Framework (2013),
1ssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgamizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial
Reporting

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design implementation and maintenance of effective internal control over financial
reporting relevant to the preparation and farr presentation of consohdated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. Management also 1s responsible for its
assessment about the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management Report.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opimion on
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted mn the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

An audit of financial statements involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consohdated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, mcluding the assessment of the risks of material nusstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those nisk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consohidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropniate in the circumstances. An
audit of financial statements also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

QPRAXITY



Board of Directors
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An audit of internal control over financial reporting involves performing procedures to obtain evidence
about whether a material weakness exists. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risk that a material weakness exists. An audit of internal control over
financial reporting also involves obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting based on the assessed risk.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Definition and Inherent Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

An entity’s internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with
governance, management and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
preparation of reliable financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. Because management’s assessment and our audit were conducted to meet
the reporting requirements of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement
Act (FDICIA), our audit of THE BANC ED CORP.’s internal control over financial reporting included
controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and with the instructions to the Parent Company-Only Financial
Statements for Small Holding Companies (Form FR Y-95P). An entity’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the entity;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and those charged with governance; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention, or timely detection and correction of mnauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
the entity’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements. Also, projections of any assessment of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Buasis for Adverse Opinion — Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A material weakness 1s a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. The following
material weakness has been identified and mcluded in the accompanying Management Report.

As of year-end, the controls surrounding preparation and management review as well as Board review of
the Allowance for Loan Losses calculation were not operating effectively. These controls as stated in the
internal control testing are to be completed quarterly and were not properly completed as of the
December 31, 2018 reporting period.
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Adverse Opinion — Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In our opinion. because of the effect of the matenial weakness described 1n the Basis for Adverse Opinion
paragraph on the achievement of the objectives of the criteria established 1n the Internal Control —
Integrated Framework (2013), 1ssued by the COSO, THE BANC ED CORP has not mamtained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31. 2018, based on the criteria established by the
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013), 1ssued by the COSO.

Opinion — Financial Statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of THE BANC ED CORP._. and 1ts subsidiary as of December 31, 2018
and 2017, and the results of 1ts operations and their cash flows for the years then ended 1n accordance
with accountmg principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

BED Lwp

Saint Louis, Missouri
March 26, 2019



Consolidated

December 31
Balance Sheets ASSETS 2018 2017
(Dallar amonnts in thousands,
except per share amonnts)
(Cash and due from banks (Notwe 2) $ 12,971 5 8,730
[ntcrcst—carning demand dcposits in other financial institutions 27120 31,020
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 40,091 39,750
[ntcrcst—carning time dcposits in other financial institutions 2,456 2,701
Investments in available-for-sale sccurities,
at fair value (Mote 3) 725,827 834,334
Mortgage loans held for sale 2,554 4,418
Loans (Note 4) 899,635 842,687
Less:
NMet deferred loan fees (66) (1)
Allowance for loan losses (12,768) (12,741)
Net loans 886,801 829,945
Bank prcmis:.s and cquiprncnt, net (Note 5) 27,834 29,967
Accrued interest receivable 6,398 6,491
Bank-owned life insurance policies (Note 11) 43,468 42 386
Other real estate owned, net 53 648
Goodwill 5,858 5,858
Mortgage scrvicing rights, net of accumulated amortization of $7,019
and $5,857 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, rcspcctivd},' (Note 1) 2,428 2,601
Orher assets 14,661 10,004
Total assets § 1,758,429 £ 1,809,103

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

MNoninterest-bearing deposits $ 259,184 § 254,013
[ntcrcsr—bcaring dcposits (Note 6) 1,214,354 1,275,024

Total deposits 1,473,538 1,529,037
Short-term bormwing& {(Note 8) 56,241 64,138
Long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances (Note 9) 12,820 10,205
Accrued interest pa)'a|:u|c 665 626
Other liabilities 13,688 12.689

Total liabilities 1,556,952 1,616,695

Stockholders’ cquity:
Common stock, $2 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized,
864,000 shares issucd, 819,486 and 816,798 outstanding

at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively 1,728 1,728

Surplus 14,222 13,822

Retained carnings 205,657 191,621

Trcasur}' stock, at cost — 44,514 and 47,202 shares at

THE BANC ED CORP. December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (8,591) (9,102)
AND SUBSIDIARY Accumulated other comprchcnsivc loss (11,539) (5,661)
Total stockholders’ equity 201,477 192,408

Total liabilitics and stockholders’ equiry 5 1,758,429 % 1,809,103

5:’8 dfcomp.rr.uyirzg Hobes 1o fﬂﬂjﬂfl‘c{ﬂ!ﬂﬂlﬁ?mnffﬂf SEATEMERLS,



Consolidated
Statements
of Income

THE BANC ED CORF.
AND SUBSIDIARY

Interest and dividend income:
Interest and fees on loans (Note 4)
Interest and dividends on securities:
Taxable
Exempt from federal income taxes
Interest on short-term investments
Total interest income
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits (Note 6)
Interest on short-term borrowings (Note 8)

]H[‘CI‘CSTZ on lang—tcrm chcral HO]TIC Laan Bank advanccs {NCIII 9:]

Total interest expense

th il'ltC!'CSt iI'ICCIITIC

Credit for loan losses (Note 4)
MNet interest income after credit for loan losses

Noninterest income:
Service charges on depaosit accounts
Income from fiduciary activities
Net security sale gains (Note 3)
Data processing revenucs
Mortgage banking revenues
Other noninterest iIncome
Total noninterest income
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits (Note 11)
Occupancy and cquipment cxpense (Note 5)
Advertising
Legal and professional fees
Postage, printing, and supplics
FDIC assessments
Dhirectors’ fees
Amortization of mortgage servicing rights
Other noninterest cxpense
Total noninterest cxpense

Income before applicable income taxes

Applicable income tax expense (including impact of enacted
changes in tax laws of $1,575 for December 31, 2017) (note 7)

NCt il'iCOITlC

Basic and diluted carnings per share, based on 817,221 and 816,739
average shares outstanding in 2018 and 2017, respectively

Sr.’! aszompmxyjng nobes 1o fﬂmﬂ!f#ﬂ!ﬂdﬁ?ﬂn[{lﬂ! SEaremenis,

Years ended December 31

2018

2017

(Dollar ameounts in thousands,
excepr per share amonnts)

34,134

13,699
5,253
676

53,762

8,260
854
461

9575

44,187

44187

4,340
4,332
1,116
1,976
4,934
12,077

28,775

28,804
7,599
958
1,880
529
565
1,448
1,162
9,794

52,739

20,223

3,866

16,357

20.02

$

27473

13,306
5,543
944

47,266

7,186
388
197

5771

39,495

(1,880)

41,375

4,373
4,026

602
2,035
4,848
9,831

25715

27,835
7760
1,167
1,135
534
565
624
1,270
9,542

50,432

16,658

6,043

10,615

13.00



Consolidated
Statements of
Comprehensive
Income

Consolidated
Statements of

Stockholders’
Equity

THE BANC ED CORF.
AND SUBSIDIARY

Years ended December 31
2018 2017
{(Deallar amevunts in thowsands)
Net income $ 16,357 § 10,615
Other comprechensive income (loss) before rax:
Net unrealized galns (losses) on available-for-sale securities (3,264) 20
Reclassification adjustment for realized gains included in
noninterest income on the conselidated statements of Income (L1173} (602)
Other comprehensive loss before tax (6,381) {582)
Income tax related to items of other comprehensive income (loss),
nct of $1,160 and $205 relating to amounts reclassificd
out of accumulated other comprehensive income 1,820 978
Other comprchcnsivc income {loss), net of tax (4,561) 396
Total comprehensive income 5 11,796 g 11,011

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

l:::E!I'I'I Mo

Stock

Accumulated

Other Total
Retained  Trcasury  ComprehensiveStockholders

S‘LLI'FJIJ.S Ea.rnings StDCk [nmmc (1065) Eq'l.l i.t}-'

(Dallars amonnes in thowsands, except per share amounts)

Balance at December 31, 2016 $1,728 813,807 5184478  $(9,064) § (6,057) $184,892
MNet Income — — 10,615 — — 10,615
Purchase of 513 shares for treasury — —- - (116) C- (116)

Cash dividends declared
(54.25 per share) —- - (3.472) — - (3,472)

Stock issued for directors’ fees
404 shares from treasury — 15 — 78 - 93

Unrealized net holding gains on
available-for-sale securitics, net of
related tax effect — —- - — 396 396

Balance at December 31, 2017 J28 13,822 191,621 (9,102) (5,661) 192,408
Net income - —— 16,357 — — 16,357
Purchasc of 144 shares for treasury — — - 136) —— (36)

Cash dividends declared
($4.45 per sharc) — — (3.638) e —= (3,638)

Stock issued for directors’ fees —

2,832 shares from treasury - 400 — 547 —- 047

Unrealized net holding losses on
available-for-sale securities, net of
related tax effect — — - — (4.561) (4,561)

Balance at December 31, 2018 $1,728

514,222 $205,657 5(8591) §(11,539) $201,477

SE’P zszompmxyéng nobes 1o (ﬂﬂsﬂflﬁrﬂlfﬂlﬁfmﬂffﬁ! SEaremenis,



Consolidated
Statements of

Cash Flow

THE BANC ED CORF.
AND SUBSIDIARY

Cash HOWS frorn opcrating actlvitics:

th iI'ICCllTlC $

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization and accretion
Amortization of intangible asscts
Stock issued for directors’ fees
Credir for loan losses
Deferred income tax expense
Net gains on security sales
Net cash gains on mortgage loans sold in secondary market
Capitalized mortgage servicing rights

Years ended December 31
2018

(Dollar amownis in thousands)

16,357

1,838
3,081
1,162
947
776
(1,116)
(1,595)
(988)

Net losses l{gain.s} on other real estare owned sales and write-downs  (2,227)

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 93
Increase in accrued interest payable 39
Mortgage loans originated for sale in sccondary market (103,095)
Procecds from mortgage loans sold in sccondary market 106,554
Increase in cash value of bank-owned life insurance p-a|icics {1,082)
Ovther operating activitics, net (2,461}
Net cash provided by operating activitics 18,283
Cash flows from investing activitics:
Praceeds from calls and maturirics of and principal payments on
available-for-sale securities 214,430
Proceeds from marurities of interest-carning time deposits
in other financial institutions 245
Purchases of bank premise and equipment, net 295
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 70,186
Purchases of:
Available-for-sale securities (184,454)
Bank-owned lifc insurance policies —
Federal Home Loan Bank stock (250)
Redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 50
Net increase In loans (57.416)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 3,382
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 46,468
Cash flows from financing activitics:
Net increase (decrease) in d:posit.s (55,499)
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings (7.808)
Net increase in long-term borrowings 7000
Payments on long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances (4,384)
Trca.sur}' stock purcha,scs (36)
Dividends paid (3,595)
Net cash providcd by (used in) Ena.ncing activitles  (64,410)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 341
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of year 39,750
Cash and cash cquivalcnts at end af}':ar § 40,091
Supplcmcntal information: -
Cash paid for:
Interest £ 9,536
Income taxes 2,750
MNoncash transactions:
Transfers to other real estate owned in settlement of loans 360
Dividends pa}'ab]c 942

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2017

b 10,615

2,047
3,843
1,270
93
(1,880)
2,736
(602)
(1,979)
(1,023)
103
(388)
65
(109,442)
110,053
(1,081)
2,823
17,253

304,792

138
110,257

(425,467)
(1,000)
(310)

(95,206)
1,834
(104,962)

80,016
8,454

(3.966)
(116)
(3.431)
80,957
(6,752)
46,502

§ 39750

$ 7706

1,281

997
899



Notes to
Consolidated
Financial
Statements

(Dollar amounis
in thousands, excepr
per share amounts)

THE BANC ED CORP.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature ofOpeﬂlinns The Banc Ed Cm]:. (the Compan}'] pr'cwiclm a full range ufbanking services to
individual and corporatc customers throughout the St. Louis metropolitan arca, through the branch nerwork of
its wholly owned subsidiary bank, TheBANK of Edwardsville (TheBANK). The Company and TheBANK are
subject to competition from other financial and nonfinancial institutions providing financial products throughout
the 5t. Louis metropolitan arca. Additionally, the Company and TheBANK are subject to the regulations of
certain federal and state agencies and undergo periodic cxaminations by those regulatory agencics.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation The financial statements of the Compa_ny have been Prcparcd in
conformity with accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America and general practices
within the banking industry. In the normal course of business, the Company encounters two significant types
of risk: cconomic and regularory. Economic risk is comprised of interest rate risk, credit risk, and market

risk. The Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities repricc on a
different basis than its interest-carning asscts. Credie risk is the risk of default on the Company’s investment

or loan portfolios resulting from the borrower’s inability or unwillingness to make contractually required
payments. Market risk reflects changes in the valuc of the Investment portfolio, collateral underlying loans
reccivable, and the valuc of the Company’s investment in real estate.

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and
TI:!.CBANK.. AI.I. signiﬁcant inl:crcumpa.ny ACCOUNTS ﬂ.l'ld. t[EIlSEfI'.iDnS I'I.E.\"C bCC'l'.l chmlnal.‘cd iﬁ mnsolidation.

Basis of Accounting The Company and TheBANK urilize the accrual basis of accounting, which includes in
the total of net income all revenues carned and expenses incurred, regardless of when actual cash payments are
reccived or paid.

Comprehensi‘?e Income (Loss) The Compa.n:v is also rcqujn:d to report cumprchcnsi\-t income (loss), of which
nct income is a component. Comprchensive income (loss) 1s defined as the change in cquity (net asscts) of a
business enterprisc during a period from transactions and other cvents and circumstances from nonowner sources,
including all changes in equiry during a period, excepr those resulting from investments by, and distributions to,
owners, and cumulative effects of accounting changes recorded directly to retained carnings. The components of
accumulared other compn:h:nsi\t income (loss) are as follows at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2007

Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities §  (16,140) b3 (9,759)
Deferred tax effect 4,601 4,098
5 (11,539) $ (5,661)

Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI) by Component Amounts reclassified
from AOCI and the affected line items in the statements of income during the years ended December 31, 2018

and 2017, were as follows:

Amounts Reclassified
from AOCI Affecred Line Item in the
2018 2007 Statements of Income
Net realized gains on Noninterest income —
available-for-sale securitics 51,116 5602 Net security sale gains

Bank Owned Life Insurance Bank owned lifc insurance policies are reflected in the consolidated balance
sheet at the cstimated cash surrender value. Changes in the cash surrender value of these policics, as well

as a portion of the insurance proceeds received, are recorded in the noninterest income in the consolidated
statement of Income.



Notes to
Consolidated
Financial
Statements
Continued

(Dollar amounis
in thousands, excepr
per share amounts)

THE BANC ED CORP.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTE 1 - Continued

Use I:IFESH[IIIIES TI'I.C prcpa.rar.ion ofﬁna.ncial STAICIMCNILS i.[l conf—urm'll}' wrd'l aﬂmunt]ng Pl'll'l.ClPIES gcncmlly
HCCEPTCC‘ il'l tJ'lC Uﬂi[td StﬂtC'S D}-Am:rica rl:quircs ITIEIIQ.ngC‘ﬂttD makc fStilTlatCS ﬂ.l'ld ﬂSSLllTlPtiﬂﬂS that HH:CCt
I.'I'IE I.'EPOITCd AMOounts ol:asscts ﬂ.l'ld. ]la]:l'ttics a.n.d d.l.ECIDsI.lI'CS D:Fcontingcrlt ASECIS ﬂl.'ld Il&bl].n:lﬂs at tI.'l.C dﬂtf
DFd'IC ﬁnam:ia] statcmenis 3.|'Il:l thc lt'])Dn:C& amounts ofrcw:rmcs 311{[ CXPCI'ISES dl.ll'il'lg tlr rcpclrting PCTjBCL
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the
EHCIWE.I'IEC FD]' IOQ.I'] I‘.CISSCS-., morl.gagc SCI'\'iCil'I.g ]'igi]‘lS. gODCI'Wi]], and Fﬂil’ vaJuc Dfﬁnancial i]']St]'Ll]T]CﬂTS.

Cash and Cash Equivalents For purposcs of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash equivalents
include cash and duc from banks and interest-bearing deposits in other financial instirutions. The deposits are
held in various commercial banks, as well as the Federal Reserve and Federal Loan Home Bank of Chicago. At
December 31, 2018, the Company's cash accounts exceeded ﬁ:clcr:ﬂ]}r insured limits b}-‘ approximarcljr 51,158.

Interest—bea.ring Time Deposits ]ntcrcst—bcﬂ.ring r_lcposits in banks mature within five ycars and are
carricd ar cost.

Earnings Per Share Basic carnings per sharc amounts are computed by dividing consolidated net income
available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares ourstanding, which
were 817,221 and 816,739 shares for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. There are no

COIm muon SIDCIE equlva]cnts. ﬂ'ltl'cf{ll’f l:ﬁll.ltcd Cﬂ.l'l'lll'lgs per SJ'I:U'C tql.lﬂJS basic carning.s per sha.rc,

Iavestments in Securities The Compa.ny classifies 1ts debt securities as available-for-sale at the time of
purchasc. Availablefor-sale securities are recorded at fair value. Unrealized ho]cling gaj ns and lo@scs, net of the
related tax effect, on available-for-sale securities are excluded from ca_rnings and rcpartcd as a component of
other compn:hcnsivc income In stockholders’ t:qult:gr until realized. Transfers of securities between l:atcgorics
would be recorded at fair valuc at the date of transfer. Unrealized holding gains and losses would be recognized

In camlngs for any UQDSfCI'S Imio tbC t]"ﬂ.li]]']g cal:cgor}f.

Mortgage-backed sccuritics represent participating interests in pools of long-term first mortgage loans
originated and scrviced by the issucrs of the sccuritics. Amortization of premiums and aceretion of discounts
for mortgage-backed sccuritics arc recognized as interest income using the interest method, which considers
the timing and amount of prepayments of the underlying mortgages in cstimating future cash flows for
individual mortgage-backed sccuritics. For other debr securitics in the available-to-sale category, premiums
and discounts arc amortized or accredited over the lives of the respective securitics, with consideration of
historical and estimated prepayment rates, as an adjustment to yicld using the interest method. Dividend and
interest income are recognized when carned. Realized gains and losses from the sale of any sccurities classified
as available-for-sale arc included in carnings and arc derived using the specific identification method for
determining the cost of sccuritics sold.

Declines in the fair value of sccuritics below their cost that are deemed to be other-than-temporary arc
reflected in operations as realized losses. In estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, management
systematically cvaluates investment securitics for other-than-temporary declines in fair value on a quarterly
basis. The analysis requires management to consider various factors, which include the present valuc of

the cash flows cxpected to be collected compared to the amortized cost of the sccurity, the duration and
magnitude of the decline in value, the financial condition of the issucr or issucrs, the structure of the sccurity,
and the intent to sell the security or whether it is more likely than not that the Company would be required to
scll the security before its anticipated recovery in marker value.

Loans Loans arc stated at the principal amount of outstanding principal balances, less the allowance for loan
losses and net deferred loan origination fees. Interest on loans is credired to income based on the principal
amount outstanding. Loans arc considered delinquent whenever interest and/or principal payments have not
been received when due. The recognition of interest income is discontinued when, in management’s judgment,
the interest will not be collectible in the normal course of business. Subsequent payments received on such
loans are applicd to principal if any doubt exists as to the collectability of such principal; otherwise, such
reccipts are recorded as interest income. Loans arc returned to accrual status when management belicves full
collectability of principal and Interest is expected. TheBANK considers a loan impaired when all amounts due,
both principal and intcrest, will not be collected in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan
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agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral
value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when duc. Loans that
experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-casc basis,
taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall

in relation to the principal and interest owed. When measuring lmpalrmcnt for loans, the cxpccrcd furure
cash flows of an impaired loan arc discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate. Alternatively, impairment

is measured by reference to an ebservable market price, if one exists, or the fair value of the collateral for a
collateral-dependent loan.

Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and recognized as an adjustment to
interest income over the lives of the related loans using the interest method.

Allowance for Loan Losses The rescrve for possible losses on loans represents management’s best estimare
of losses probable in the cxisting loan portfolio. The reserve for possible loan losscs is available w absorb

[Oa" Chal—gC'OFFS‘ Thc rcscrve is incrcascd IJY Pm‘-’lsions Chargcd o Opcratiﬂns and iS fcduccd b}r lclan Chal’gﬂ-
DHS J.CSS mtflcs. Loans arc Partia]l? ar .FLIH.}-' Chargcd DFFWJ.-ICD. mana.gcmcnt bclicvcs Such amounts arc
uncollectible, cicher through collateral liquidation or cash payment. Management utilizes a systematic,
dofumc“tcd EPPTOE.C[-I In C[thrml"lng thc aPPmPrlar‘: Iml thhc rcscrve Fﬂr PDSSlbIC 1031-1 IDS-SCS Thc IC‘-'CI

GF d‘lc rcserve l'CHCCtS mﬂna.gcmcnts Cﬂnrl nulng C\"aluatlﬂn DF Indl.lstr},’ concentrations; SPCClﬁC Cl'fd.it rlsks.
I.Oal.'l. 1055 C}{pcrlcncc current Ioa". Portfa].lo quﬂ.llt}". Prcscnt Cconomlc Pﬂlltlcal and I'Cgu.latﬁr} condltlons,
and probable losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. The determination of the appropriate level of the
FCECrve Fcr Pﬂssiblt 1031'1 IM& iﬂhcrfntl}' inv'ol‘-"c’s a d.cgrcc Ofsubjccti\"it}' ﬂnd rcquircs ThCBANK to ma;{t
Sigﬂiﬁcant Citimatcs Ofcul—mnt crcd.it risks and. fu.tul-c trcnds, a." ofwhich mayundcrgo matcfia.l Changﬁ.
Changﬁ i" CCOaniC Condltions aﬁﬂ:l‘ing boerwch. new inFOfmatiOn I‘tgal’ding Cxisting ID&HS, idcﬂtiﬁcﬂtjorl
of additional problem loans, and other factors, both within and outside of TheBANK's control, may require an
increase in the reserve for possible loan losses.

Managcmcnt .IJCHC‘-"CS tI'IC TCECTVE For POSSlblC 103" ICISSCS iS adcquatc to EIJ\SDT]:I IOSSCS i]'l IZI'IC IOﬂl‘l PO]’tFDliD.
Whllt mana.gcmcnt uscs a\-‘aila]:ﬂc lnﬁ:’rmation to l'CCDgI'IlI.C lCISSCS an loans, Futurc ﬂd.dil'iDI'IS to th-c IESCrve may
]:IC necessary bﬂscd on Chﬂl’lg’CS In economlc cnnditicns,

Bank Premises and Equipment Bank prcmlscs and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation of premises and equipment is computed over the expected lives of the assets, gcncra.l]y using the
Stl’algl‘lt llnt mcthod Estlmatcd uSC'{:l.ll I]‘-’CS anc gfﬂcrﬂ]lv 39 > yfars ﬁ:’r Pmm!scs and I:'ul].d]ﬂg 1mprovtmcrlts ﬂ.nd
3 w 15‘ Vcﬂ.rs E]l— FLirnItl.ch. ﬁmrcs, and fqulpmcnt E](pcm:l_lturts FOI maJﬂ‘r rcncwals and lmprD\’CmCﬂtS Drhlnk
Prcmlsfs a.nd Cqulpmcnt arc Cﬂpltalllcd a"d thD\Sr E:ll' malntcnancf Sl-ld rcPﬂlIS arc ﬂpcﬂscd as lncul'l‘cd

Bank prcmiscs and equipment and other long-lived asscts are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changcs in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. In such
situarions, recoverability of asscrs to be held and used would be measured by a comparison of the carrying amount
of the assets to future net cash Alows expected to be generated by the asscts. If such assets were considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized would be measured by the amount by which the carrying amount

of the asscts exceeded the fair value of the asscts, using observable marker prices. Asscts to be disposed would be

I'C'P-CIITCd at l'l'IC IO‘WCT DFtI‘IC C&l’l’}"ll'lg amount or Falr l.'a|uc lCSS cstlmatcd sc“ing COSES.

Other Real Estate Owned Other real estate owned represents property acquired through foreclasure, or
deeded to TheBANK in licu of foreclosure, for loans on which the borrowers have defaulied as to payment
of principal and interest. Propertics acquired are initially recorded at the lower of TheBANK's carrying
amount or fair valuc, using obscrvable marker prices (less estimated selling costs). Valuations are periodically
performed by management, and an allowance for losses is established by means of a charge to noninterest
cxpense if the carrying valuc of a property exceeds its fair value, less estimated selling costs. Subsequent
increases in the fair value less estimated sclling costs are recorded through a reversal of the allowance, but net
below zero. Costs related to the development and improvement of property are capiralized, while costs relating
to holding the property are cxptnscd. Of the $53 of other real estate owned ar December 31, 2018, $53 was
comprised of residential real estate propertics. Additionally, the Bank had $902 of mortgages in process of
foreclosure at December 31, 2018.
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Goodwill The excess of the Company’s consideration given in cach subsidiary acquisition transaction over
the fair value of the net asscts acquired is recorded as goodwill, an intangible asset on the consolidated balance
sheets with an indefinite uscful life. Impairment is measured as the excess of carrying valuc over the implied
fair value of goodwill with an indefinite life. Subsequent increases in goodwill value are not recognized in the
financial statements. Management evaluates goodwill impairment annually, or more frequently if impairment
indicators arc present. There were no impairment write-downs required in 2018 or 2017.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock Included in other assets 1s common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank
of Chicago, which is administered by the Federal Housing Finance Board. As a member of the Federal Home
Loan Bank System, TheBANK is required to maintain a minimum investment in the capital stock of the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago. The stock is recorded at cost, which represents redemption value. The
redemption valuc is based on a predetermined formula, and is evaluated for impairment. At December 31,
2018 and 2017, the carrying amount of this investment was $1,669 and $1,469, respectively.

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements TheBANK enters into sales of sccuritics under agreements to
repurchase at a specified future date. Such repurchase agreements are considered financing arrangements and,
ﬂccﬂrdlngl}(, thc Obilgﬂtion o I‘cpul’cl‘lasc asscts Sﬂld 15 rCHCL_er asa liabi[ it}' iﬂ thc cﬂﬂsolidﬂtcd I:lalancc Sl‘lccts.
Repurchasc agreements are collateralized by debr sccurities which are under the control of TheBANK.

Income Taxes The Company and TheBANK account for income taxes in accordance with the income

tax accounting guidance (ASC 740, Income Taxes). The Company and TheBANK file consolidated federal
income tax returns. Applicable income taxes arc computed based on reported income and expenses, adjusted
for permanent differences between reported and taxable income. Penalties and interest assessed by income
taxing authorities are included in income tax expensc in the year assessed, unless such amounts relate to an
uncertain tax pasition, The CDmpa.n}f had no uncertain tax p-ositions at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

TI'IC CCIITIPEI'I)’ USCS ti'lf assct and hablhty mcthod Di- accounting FDT il'lCO]TlC taxes, il'l whlch dcﬁ:rrn:[ tax asscts
ﬂl'ld ilablhrlcs arc rcv:ognizcd far thC csrimarcd fururc tax conscquences attributabic w clichrcnccs IJCI'WTCI'I thc
ﬁna_ncial statcment C&lT}-"ll'lg amonts DFC‘XiStil’lg asscis 3.I'Id llabllltlcs ﬂl'ld thcir l'fSPCCl'iVC tax bﬂSCS. DCFCTI'CC{
tax asscts ELTld habllltlcs arc mca.surcd using cnactcd tax ratcs in CH:CCt FOI' l'I'IC year in WhiCI'I ti'lClSC ['ClTlPOl'&r}'
C“FFCFCI'ICC‘S arc CXPCCth o bc I'CCO\’\CTC-C[ or &C[‘tlcd. Thc CH—OCI' on CI.CF-CT[-CEI tax asscts and IlﬂblllthS DF& changc
in tax rates iS I'CGDgI'IlI.Cd il'l l'['IC PCIiOd WI'IlCI'I 1nc|udcs t]'lf cnactment datc.

The Company has not had its consolidated federal income tax returns examined by the Internal Revenue
Service for several years. The State of Illinois has examined the Company's consolidated state income tax
returns through the year ended December 31, 2016. The Company's consolidated federal and state income tax
returns are gencrally subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and State of [llinois for three years

aﬁ'c:r SLI.L'l'i rcturns arc ﬁlcd

Mortgage Banking Operations TheBANK's mortgage banking operations include the origination of long-
term, fixed-rate residential mortgage loans for sale in the secondary market. Upon receipt of an application for
a residential real estate loan, TheBANK generally locks in an interest rate with the applicable investor and, at
the same time, locks into an interest rate with the customer. This practice minimizes TheBANK's exposure to
risk resulting from interest rate fluctuations. Upon disbursement of the loan proceeds to the customer, the loan
is delivered to the applicable investor. Sales proceeds are gencrally reccived shortly thereafier. Therefore, no
loans held for sale are included in TheBANKs loan portfolio at any point in time, except those loans for which
the sale proceeds have not yet been reccived. Such loans are maintained at the lower of cost or fair valuc, based
on the outstanding commitments from the applicable investors for such loans.

Loan origination fees are recognized upon the sale of the related loans and included in the consolidated
statements of income as noninterest income from mortgage banking operations. Additionally, loan administration
fees, representing income earned from servicing certain loans sold in the secondary market, are calculated on the
outstanding principal balances of the loans serviced and recorded as noninterest income as carned.

Mortgage servicing asscts arc recognized scparatcly when rights arc acquired through purchasc or through
sale of financial asscts. Under the servicing asscts and liabilitics accounting guidance (ASC 860-50), servicing
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rights resulting from the salc or sccuritizations of loans originated by the Company arc intitially measured at

fair value at the date of transfer. For certain loans sold in the secondary market, TheBANK retains the rights to
service such loans. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, TheBANK serviced loans totaling $620,508 and $615,821,
respectively. The mortgage servicing rights are included in the consolidated financial statements and are reviewed
on a quarterly basis for impairment, based on the estimated fair value of thosc rights. The valuc of mortgage
servicing rights is determined based on the present value of estimated future cash flows, using assumptions as

to current market discount rates, prepayment speeds, and servicing costs per loan. Mortgage servicing rights

arc amortized in proportion to, and over the period of, cstimated net servicing income. The ner unamortized
balances ofmortgagc 5crvic1ng rights were $2,428 and $2,601 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, rt.spcctivcl}:

Financial Instruments For purposcs of information included in note 13 rcga.rdlng disclosures abour financial
instruments, financial instruments are defined as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity, or

a contract that both (a) 1 imposes on onc cntity a contractual obllgation to deliver cash or another financial
instrument to a sccond entity or to exchange other financial instruments on l:lotcntlall} unfavorable terms with
the second entity, and (b) conveys to that sccond entity a contractual right to receive cash or another financial
instrument from the first entity or to exchange other financial instruments on potentially favorable terms with
the first entity.

Fair Value Measurements The Company uscs fair value measurements to determine fair value disclosures.
Fair valuc is the price thar would be reccived to sell an asser or paid to transfer a liabilicy in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value, the Company
uscs various methods, including market, income, and cost approaches. Based on these approaches, the
Company often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability,
including assumptions about risk and/or the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These
inputs can be readily obscrvable, market corroborated, or generally unobscrvable inputs. The Company utilizes
valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the usc of unobservable inputs.
Bascd on the observability of the inputs used in the valuation techniques, the Company is required to provide
the following information according to the fair value hierarchy. Financial assets and liabilities carried art fair
value will be classified and disclosed in onc of the following three carcgories:

m Level 1 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New York
Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving idenrical asscts or liabilitics.

m Level 2 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets. Valuations
arc obtained from third-party pricing services for identical or similar asscts or liabilitics,

o LC\-’CI 3 =y Valuarions {'-Dr asscts and llabllitlc.s that arc dcrivcd fram Dthcl' va|uati0n lTlCthCldDIDgiCS,
including oprion pricing I'I'IDd.ClS, diSCDl.lI'Ith CE.SI'I HOW I'I'IDd.ClS and similar tcv:hniqu:s. Eil'ld not bascd

on lTIﬂ.l'I{.CI CXC]'.I.Q.I'IEC. d::alcr, or "F'Q.II.J.C ﬂS&igﬂCd o SI.I.CI'I ASSCTs Or liabilitics.

While certain asscts and liabilities may be recorded ar the lower of cost or fair valuc as described above (c.g.,
impaired loans, loans held for sale, other real estate owned), the only assets or liabilities recorded ar fair value

on a recurring basis arc the Company’s investments in available-for-sale securitics, which arc measured ar fair
value using Level 2 valuation inputs. No other assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value on a recurring or
nonrecurring basis. For securitics valued using Level 2 inputs, the market valuations utilize several sources which
include obscrvable inputs rather than “significant unobscrvable inputs” and, thercfore, fall into the Level 2 carcgory,
and arc based upon dealer quotes, market spreads, the ULS. Treasury yield curve, trade execution data, market
conscnsus prepayment speeds, credit Informarion, and the bonds’ terms and conditions ar the securiry level.
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Fi.ﬂﬂﬂCiﬂl The ﬁ)llowing table summarizes financial instruments measured ar fair valucon a rccu.ning basis as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017:
Statements
Continued December 31, 2018
Quoted prices  Significant
In acrve other Significant
 (Dollar amoswnis markersfor  obscrvable  unchservable Total
in thowsands, except identical asscts inputs inputs fair
per share amounis) (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) value
Investments in available-for-sale securities:
:-l.nd corpomt:ons 5§ — § 489,556 g — % 489,556
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions — 105,676 — 105,676
Mortgage-backed securitics — 122,570 — 122,570
Other debt securities — 6,351 — 6,351
Equity securities — 1,674 — 1,674
Total available-for-sale securities 5 — $ 725,827 b — $ 725,827
December 31, 2017
Quoted prices  Significant )
in active other Significant
markees for  obscrvable  unchscrvable Total
idenrical asscrs inputs Inputs fair
(Lewel 1) {Level 2) {chc] 3) value
Investments in availableforsale securities:
U.S. Treasury issucs and obllgatlons
OFU 5 gD\'tlTlmcrll’ 3.__JCI'ICICS
and corporations 5§ — § 561,929 b3 — $ 561,929
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions — 127,643 — 127,643
Mortgage-backed securitices — 132,838 — 132,838
Other debt securities — 7529 — 7,529
Equity securities — 4,395 — 4,395
Total available-for-sale securities 5 — § 834,334 s — % 834,334
Treasury Stock Treasury stock is stated at cost and represents commen stock shares repurchased. Cost of
shares retired or reissued is determined by the firstin, first-out method.
Future Change in Accounting Principles The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credss Losses (topie 326). The ASU introduces
a new credit loss model, the current expected credin loss model (CECL), which requires carlier recognition of
c[td.it EO’SSCS-. wl‘lill: HJSD Prﬂ"iding addjljl}ﬂﬂj 'El—:-].l'lsl:,ﬂ.l'cl']l__-l‘-T abclul Cl—fdit risk.
The CECL model utilizes a lifetime cxpccmd credit loss™ measurement objective for the n:ccgnitian of credit
losses for loans, held to marurity sccuritics and other receivables ar the time the financial assct is originated or
acquired. The expected credit losscs arc adjusted cach period for changes in the expected lifetime credit losses. For
THE BANCED CORP. available-for-sale securitics where fair value is less than cost, credie-related impairment, if any, will be recognized
AND SUBSIDIARY in an allowance for credit losses and adjusted cach period for changes in expected credit risk. This model replaces
the multiple existing impairment models, which gencrally require thar a loss be incurred before it is recognized.
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Fl..ﬂﬂﬂCiﬂl The CECL model represents a signiﬁcmt cl‘l.a.ngc from cxjsr.ing pmcticc and may result In material changcs o
the Company’s accounting for financial inscruments. The Company is evaluaring the effect ASU 2016-13 will
Statements have on its consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. The impact of the ASU will depend upen
Continued the stare of the cconomy and the narure of our ponﬂ:|ios ar the dare ul:adaptinn. The new standard is effective
for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2021.
_ (Dollar amaunts NOTE 2 — CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS
in thousands, excepr . . .. . . . .
per share amounts) TheBANK is required to maintain certain daily reserve balances on hand in accordance with regulatory
requirements. | he reserve balances maintained in accordance with such requirements at December 31, 2018
and 2017 were approximatcly $3,799 and $3,925, respectively.
NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS IN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losscs, and cstimated fair valuc of securitics classified as
available-for-sale at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
) Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized  unrcalized  unrealized fair
2018 cost gains losses value
U.5. Treasury issucs and obligations
of U.S. government agencies
and corporations § 500,843 s — § (11,287) £ 489,556
Obligations of statcs and
political subdivisions 106,413 520 (1,257) 105,676
Mortgage-backed securities 126,448 — (3,878) 122,570
Orther debt securities 6,575 — (224) 6,351
Equity sccuritics 1.688 81 (93) 1,674
§ 741967 £ 60l £ (16,741) § 725,827
. Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized  unrealized  unrealized fair
2017 cost gains losses value
U.S. Treasury issucs and obligations
of U.5. government agencies
and corporations § 570,700 ) 48 $ (8819 § 561,929
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions 127,391 1,128 (876) 127,643
Mortgage-backed sccuritics 135,397 1 (2,560) 132,838
Other debt securities 7.579 23 (73) 7,529
Equity sccuritics 3,026 1,432 (63) 4,395
§ 844,003 § 2,632 g (12,391) § B34,334
The amoruzed cost and estumared fair value of securities classified as available-for-sale at December 31, 2018,
by contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturitics may differ from contractual marurities because
certain issuers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties.
Amortized Estimated
cost fair value
Duc onc year or less § 102,923 § 102,923
Duc onc year through five years 451,318 441,123
THE BANC ED CORP. Duc five years IJ'm:m_gl‘l ten years 58,267 56,786
AND SUBSIDIARY Duc after ten years 1,323 1,261
Mortgage-backed sccuritics 126,448 122,570
Equity securitics 1.688 1,674
§ 741,967 § 725,827
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Certain investments in debe (and marketable cquity) securitics are reported in the financial statements at an
amount less than their historical cost. Total fair value of these investments at December 31, 2018 and 2017
was $689,099 and $751,257, which is approximatcly 95% and 89%, respectively, of the Company's available-
for-salc investment portfolio. These declines primarily resulted from recent increases in market interest rates.
Provided below is a2 summary of available-for-sale sccurities which were in an unrealized loss position at
December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018

cbljganc—ns of US.
Gcn'cmml:nt a.gcnl:fcs
E.I']d corporations

Obligarions of states and

political subdivisions
Mortgage-backed sccurities
Other debr securirics
Equiry securitics

2017

U.S. Treasury issucs and
obligations of U.S.
government agencies
and corporations

Obligations of statcs and
political subdivisions

Mortgage-backed sccurities

Orther debr securities

Equil)' S-CCI.Ir]‘['lC'.S

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Estimated Unrca]tzcd Estimated Unrcalized  Estimated Unrealized
r value ir value osscs ir value osses

$19,023 § (132)

11,993 (85)
14,327 (147)
679 (30)
1,674 93)

$470,533 $ (1L155)

56,935 (1,172)
108,243  (3,731)
5,672 (194)

$ 489,556 S (11,287)

68,948  (1,257)
122570 (3,878)
6,351 (224)
1,674 (95)

§ 47696 § (489)

$641,403 3 (16,252)

$ 689,000 § (16,741)

Less than 12 months

12 months or more

Total

Estimated Unrcalized
}DSSCS

fair valuc

Estimated Unrcalized

fa!.r VEIJL[C iOS'SATS

Estimated Unrealized
E’:lil’ VBJI.IC IOSSCS

§297.126 § (3,021)

52,266 (557)

55477 (619)
3,797 (73)
4,395 (63)

$248,526 § (5,798)

14,061 (319)
75,609 (1,941)

§ 545,652 § (8,819)

66,327 (876)

131,086 (2,560)
3.797 (73)
4,395 (63)

$413.061 § (4,333)

$338,196 3 (8,058)

$ 751,257 §(12,391)

TI:!C Dbligations OFLT.-S. go\"cmmcrl,t a.gcncics 3.]'.Id. l:clrporations and mDrtga.gc—backcd SCL—LlfitiC'S with unn:a!izcd
IQG—SCS arc primarl-}‘\' iSSLl.fd fl‘l:lm ﬂ.l'l.d gl.l.a.m.nt?:c& IJ}' tI.'l.C Fcc]cra] Natjonal hiartgagc :a!ssociation, FDC[:T:-I.'

Hﬂmf Lﬂan N[Drtga.gc COIPOmiGﬂ U 5 Tl'cﬂ.il.l.l'i.cs or FCd.CI"E.l HD]TIC Loa.n Eank Dbiibsxions Dfstatcs and
political subdivisions in an unrcalized loss position arc pr]marllv comprised of municipal bonds with adequate
Cl'tdlt [atlngs, undcrh Ing Cﬂliﬂtc'[ﬂ.l alldjl}l' CﬂSI'I Hﬂ'\\- Pfﬂjcftlﬂns ThC unrl:ﬂ_lfzcd I'OSSCS asso-clatcd Wlth

these scuritics arc not belicved to be artributed to credit quality, but rather to changes in interest rates and
temporary market movements. In addition, the Company does not intend to sell th-c securitles with unrealized
losses, and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to scll these securities before

ICCOVETY Df t}til’ ﬂ.lTlOI'tlZCd Cost bﬂSCS. “'hlch may IJC at mﬂn].l'it_\.’.

The carrying value of debt securities pledged as collateral to secure public funds, securities sold under
repurchase agreements, certain short- and long-term borrowings, and for other purposes amounted to
approximatcly $479,107 and $491,984 ar December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The carrying valuc of
debt securitics pledged as collateral to secure the securitics sold under repurchase agreements amounted
approximatcly $68,956 and $72,268 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The amount of letters of
credit pledged from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago amounted to $0 and $40,000 at December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively. These letters of credit served as additional collateral to secure public funds.

During 2018 and 2017, certain available-for-sale securinies were sold for procccds tara]ing $£70,186 and
$110,257, respectively, resulting in gross gains of $1,601 and $773, respectively, and gross losscs of $485 and
171, rcsp-tcth‘cly.
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NOTE 4 - LOANS
The composition of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
Commercial:
Real estate § 358,813 5 318,095
Other 204,714 210,629
Real estate:
Construction 77020 57.488
Residential 234,255 232,562
Consumer 24,833 23,913
899,635 842 687
Less: Ner deferred loan fees (66) (1)
Allowance for loan losses (12,768) (12,741)
Net Loans 5 886,801 § 829,945

TheBANK grants commercial, industrial, residential, and consumer loans throughout Madison and 5t. Clair
countics in [llinois, and St. Louis County and St. Charles County in Missouri. TheBANK docs not have any
particular concentration of credit in any onc cconomic sector, except that a substantial portion of the portfolio
is concentrated in and sccured by real estate in the four-county arca. The ability of TheBANKs borrowers to
honor their contractual obligations is dependent upon the local cconomy and its cffect on the real estate market.
Included in consumer loans are overdrafis of $326 and $249 ar December 31, 2018 and 2017, rcsp-ncr_lvtly

The following describe the sk characteristics relevant to cach of the portfolio scgments:

Commercial Real Estate Commercial real estate loans arc secured by various commercial property
types, a majority of which arc owncr-occupicd and in TheBANK's market arca. TheBANK originates
commercial real estate loans with a typical term of threc or five years with an adjustable rate feature
generally tied to the three- or five-year U.S. Treasury bill index or the prime commercial rate as quoted
by The Wall Sereer Journal. These loans are typically amortized over 15 or 20 years. Strict underwriting
standards arc in place that include, but arc not limited to, independent appraisals, cash flow analyses,
creditworthiness, cxpericnce, and management. Credit risk in these loans may be impacted by the
creditworthiness of a borrower, property values and the local cconomies in the Company’s market arcas.

Cnllll]lert'i:il - Olllel' Commcn:iaf I)l.I.EiI'ICSS IOE.I'JS Vﬂ.l'jr' il'l '.'}"PC ﬂl'ld iDCI'IldC SCL'I.'ll'Cd and 'LU'ISCCLU'CC[
CDITlITlC]'CIﬂJ busincss IDG.I.'I,S 'I;Ol' ﬂ'}c purposc OF ﬁna.nclng qu.li.PlTlCl'It acqulsition. cxpansion. work_ing capital,
ﬂ.l'ld Od'lcl' gv:ncr:ll Ihl.lSil'ICSS P'I]J]JOIS. T}]C erms OFtI'll_‘SC IsDH.HS anc gcncz‘all}' fﬂl’ ]C‘SS d'lﬂﬂ sCven }'Cﬂl'&.

T}IC lmns 4arc cid‘u:r ncgul:latcd on a ﬁxcd—ral:c bﬂﬁls or Cﬂ.l'l"}' va.riabic j.IltCI'CSt ratcs md:::xcd o TI'IE PfilTIE
CDITllTlEI'CiﬂJ ratc as q'l.ll}ltd I:l)' TEM Wﬂﬂsﬁfﬁjﬂmﬂf or tI'IC onc- d'lI'CC—, or E\T—}'Cﬂr U.S. Trcasur}' biﬂ.
Ccmmcrc}a] crcdit dCL_iSiOl'IS anc IJQ.SC& 'I.I.PDl'l a CDITIPICTC Cl'td.it rcvi-cw OF tl'lt barm‘wcr. A dc‘tcrminal:icin

iS ITI.E.CIE as 'dflc bOlTﬂ“"Cf’S ﬂbll.lfy' w [tpﬂ.)' i.[l accorda.ncc '“'id'l th'.' PI'DPGSCd IOEI'I terms, as qu asan
D\'C[EJI asscssment DFI’J'IC crcdit l'iSkS invnl‘l.‘u:l. PCl'SDﬂEJ gl.lﬂIﬂ.l'lthS OF bDITm[S arc gcncrail}' rtqu_"lrcd. I]'I
cva|ua.tin.g a commc:rcia] b'l.lSll'lESS Ioﬂ.nu TI.'I.CBANK CDl'.I.Si.d.CTE dt'ht SCWECC CG.P&I)I].“'.!ES acl:ua.l a.nd PI'D_]CCICCI.
cash flows, and the borrower's inherent industry risks. Credit risk in these loans may be impacted by the
l:rcd.'ln\rorﬂ'uncss DF& i)D]TD“'CT pru-pcm \'a]ucs and th‘C local CCDl'lD.ITIlCS lﬂ "J'JC [:OITIPE.I'I} & markcl‘ Arcas.

Real Estate - Construction Construction Icnu:hng gcncraﬂy involvesa greater dfgrcc of risk than
TheBANK’s other real cstate lending. The construction phase of a loan gencrally lasts nine months. As

with TheBANK's other loan types, the underwriting standards validate proper loan-to-value coverage and
the borrower’s abiliry to service the debe. Prior to approval of the construction loan, TheBANK ensures the
borrower has the approval, capacity, and wherewithal to handle the permanent financing. Credit risk in these
loans may be impacted by the creditworthiness of a borrower, property valucs and the local cconomies in the
Company’s market arcas.
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NOTE 4 - Continued

Real Estate - Residential Residential real estate loans are pmdnminantl'y collateralized by propcrtics
located in TheBANK's market arca. TheBANK adheres to strict underwriting standards that have been
reviewed by the Board of Directors and the banking regulators. The underwriting standards include, but
arc not limited to, repayment capacity, creditworthiness, proper loan-to-value coverage, and correct lien
positions supporied by title policics. Credit risk in these loans may be impacted by the creditworthiness of
a borrower, property valucs and the local cconomics in the Company’s market arcas.

Multifamily real estate loans are generally secured by apartment buildings and rental properties.
Multifamily real estate loans are typically offered with interest rates that adjust after one, three, or five
years. T he interest rate adjustments are tied to cither a ULS. Treasury bill index or to the prime commercial
ratc as quoted by The Wall Sereet Journal. When originating multifamily real estate loans, TheBANK
cvaluates the qualifications and finandial condition of the borrower, proﬁtabrlrty, and expertisc, as well

as the valuc and condirion of the mortgaged property sccuring the loans. TheBANK also considers the
financial resources of the borrower, the borrower’s expericnce In owning and managing similar properties,
the cash flow the property generates (1.c., the gross rental income minus associated expenscs), and the
debtor’s global obligations to determine sustainable repayment capacity. Multifamily real estate loans are

HD.IT.It qu.llt“!f’ I.i.l'lCS fol'cd.it arc ‘:I.IESI.gI'ICl.'..5 'FOl’ CIWHCF—DCCLIP‘KCI l'iOlTlCS. T])CSC arc ryplca]l_v il.ll'li.Ol' 1icns, ﬂ.l'ld
l'l'll.I.S T]}CBANK pays PE.'I'I:-ICUJ::I.I' arl:cnl:iun W d'lc ba.n—m—valu.c coverage ﬂ.l.'ld l:|1c dcbt SCNiCE CS.PE.CH}V thhf

Comlner CDI'I.SI.I.IT]C]' I.D.'RI]S arc ]ll'ldﬂ'wl'iﬂcl'l ]]'l 4 Mannecr t]']ﬂl' vcﬁﬁcs d'lc barn:rww:r’s capacity o PEY,
credit-worthiness, and proper vahuation of the collateral. The structure of the loan is dependent on the
purposc and collatcral being pledged as sccurity. Credit risk in these loans may be impacted by the
crcdlnvorﬂ'l[ncss DFE I)D!TDWCT. PTDPCI.T}" V‘EJHCS E.I'Id. tI.'I!C IOCGJ. COJI'[D.ITI[CS il'.l. tl'.lt C-Dmpan)r’s markcr arcas.

The aggregate amount of loans to exccutive officers and directors and loans made for the benefit of exccutive
ofhcers and dirccrors was $3,414 and $3,802 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Such loans were
made in the normal course of business on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral,
as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transacrions with other persons, and did not involve more
than the normal risk of collectibility. A summary of activity for loans to exccutive officers and directors for the
year ended December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Balance, December 31, 2017 § 3,802
MNew loans made 470
Payments reccived (858)
Balance, December 31, 2018 § 3414

14
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NOTE 4 - Continued

Following is an analysis of the reserve for possible loan losses by loan type and loans that have been specifically
evaluated or evaluated in the aggregate at Diecember 31, 2018 and 2017:

Allowance for loan losses:

Beginning balance
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provision {Credit)
Ending balance
Reserve allocations:
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Collecuvely evaluared
for impairment
Ending balance
Loans:
Individually evaluared
for impairment
Collecuvely evaluared
for impairment
Ending balance

Allowance for loan losses:

Beginning balance
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provision {Credit)
Ending balance
Reserve allocations:
Individually evaluared
for impairment
Collecuvely evaluared
for impairment
Ending balance
Loans:
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Collectively evaluared
for impairment

Ending balance

2018
Commerdal Commercal Realestate Residental
real estate other construction  real estate Consumer Unallocated  Total
$ 3842 5 1502 § 1455 8§ 2666 § 248 § 3028 § 12,741
(154) (227) _ (194) (131) —_ (706)
35 523 64 90 21 — 733
301 (938) (213) (663) (8) 1,521 —_
5 4024 5 860 £ 1306 5§ 1,899 § 130 $ 4549 § 12,768
s — % 130 s 106 £ 405 $ — £ — % 711
4,024 730 1.200 1424 130 4,549 12,057
5 4024 5 860 $ 1306 § 1,899 $ 130 £ 4549 § 12,768
3 3Bl 8 130 L3 520 S 2,498 3 16 £ — 5 349
358,482 204,584 76,500 231,757 24,817 — 896,140
$358.813 5204714 $ 77020 $234.255 524833 § — 389963
2017
Commercial Commercial Realestate Residential
real estate other construction  real estate  Consumer Unallocated  Total

£ 2.2 £ 2109 $ L1307 £ 2978 £ 7 f 6,899 % 15710
(142) (198) (255) (633) (202) (1) (1,433)
31 9 152 53 17 —_ 344
1,753 (500) 251 70 216 (3.870) (1,880)
$ 3,842 5 1502 § 145 § 26066 $ 248 £ 3028 % 12741
3 — 5 88 s — b1 104 ) 6 3 — 5 198
3,842 1414 1455 2,562 242 3,028 12,543
$ 3,842 5 1502 § 145 § 26066 $ 248 £ 3028 $ 12741
$ 1,881 3 638 g 246 £ 1409 $ 15 5 — % 4,189
316,214 209,991 57.242 231,153 23,898 . 838,498
5 318,095 5 210,629 5 57488 §£232.562 $239013 ] —  %842,687

TI.'IE Il[lﬂ"DCQlIl:i AMOoUnts in [I'IC 3':.3'\."6 mbiscs rcprescnt qualltntlw: facmrs. 1nc|uding 10021 and national
CCO['IGI'I.'li.C 'EI'CIICI.S1 that haw: not IJCV:I.'l SPC{iﬁCﬂ."f} ELHOC&EC{I. o tI'IC POITFD]IO SCEMCNLS.
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NOTE 4 - Continued

A summary of impaired loans by type for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018
) Recorded Recorded
Unpaid investment  investment Total A\'e::;ge Interest
principal with no with recorded Relared recorded income
balance reserve reserve Investment rEserve investment recognized
Commercial:
Real estate 3 834 3 331 L3 —— s 331 5 — £ 1,027 b3 s
Other 131 _ 130 130 130 402 1
Real estate:
Construction 520 —_ 520 520 106 153 _—
Residential 2,622 861 1,637 2,498 475 1,613 41
Consumer 7 16 — 16 — 14 —
5 4,144 5 L1208 $ 2,287 5 349 5 711 £ 3,209 3 42
2017
) Recorded Recorded
Unpaid investment  investment Total Ave Interest
principal with no with recorded Related remlr'gil income
balance reserve reserve investment reserve investment recognized
Commercial:
Real estate 5 2387 5 1,881 s — % 1,881 £ — $ 2521 § 73
Other 665 550 88 638 88 853 41
Real estate:
Construction 296 246 - 246 e 492 29)
Residential 1.599 1.023 386 1,409 104 1,132 (3)
Consumer 22 4 11 15 [ 22 1
5 4969 5 3704 g 485 § 4,189 b3 198 § 5.020 % 83
Following is 2 summary of past-duc loans by type and number of days delinquent at December 31, 2018
and 2017:
2018
_ Recorded
investments:
3059 60-89 Greater than 90 days past
days days 90 days Total Total due and
past due past due past due past due Current loans accruing
Commercial:
Real estate § L7995 s 530 s 679 £ 3,004 $£355.809  $358.813 § 348
Other 237 172 12 421 204,293 204,714 —
Real estate:
Construction 73 - 520 393 T6,427 THL020 .
Residential 1,92 624 2,129 4,682 229,573 234,255 383
Consumer 78 5 12 95 24,738 24,833 11
§ 4112 5 133 $ 3532 5§ 8795 $890,840 $899,635 § 742
2017
~ Recorded
investments
30-59 60-89 Greater than 90 days past
days days 90 days Total Total due and
past due past due past due past due Current loans accruing
Commercial:
Real estate s 328 b3 —_ 5§ 1431 5 1759 5316336 $318.095 £ 555
Other 285 — 183 468 210,161 210,629 17
Real estare:
Construction 296 — 246 542 56,946 57,488 —
Residential 1,385 154 1,664 3,203 229,359 232,562 92
Consumer 137 20 8 165 23,748 23913 1
§ 2431 3 174 5 3532 $ 6,157 836,550 $842,687 § 665
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NOTE 4 - Continued

Following is 2 summary of loans on nonaccrual starus by type at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

Commercial:
Real estare § 331 $ 876
Other 12 166

Real estate:

Construction 520 246
Residential 1,746 1,572
Consumer 1 7
§ 2,610 § 2,867

TheBANK categorizes loans into risk catcgorics based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers
to service their debt, including current financial information, historical payment expericnce, collateral
support, credit documcntation, public information, and current cconomic trends, among other factors.
TheBANK analyzes loans lndl\"iduall'v ona contmuuus b:asls by classifying the loans as to credit risk. the
ongioing basis. No slgnlﬁcmt cha.ngn:—.s were made to cither during the past year. TheBANK uses the following
definitions for risk ratings:

m  Watch — Loans classified as watch have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close
attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment
prospects for the loan or of TheBANKs credit position at some future date.

m  Substandard — Loans classificd as substandard arc inadequatcly protected by the current sound worth
and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-
dcfined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by
the distincr possibility that TheBANK will sustain some loss if the deficiencics arc not corrected.

m  Doubtful — Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as
substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full,
on the basis of currently existing factors, conditions, and valucs, highly questionable and improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed individually as part of the above-described process are
considered pass-rared loans.

The following table presents the credit nisk profile of TheBANKs loan portfolio based on rating categorics.
TI.'IC tablc cxc]udcs purchascd ll'l'lpﬂ.l.ltd I.OQ.I'.IS Q.I'.Id. il'Dl.lbde. dcbt n:strl.l.crurl.ngs BGJ.Q.I'IECS as O{DCCEH'EI'.'WT 3!.

2018 and 2017 arc:

2018
Commercial Commeraal Real estate Residential
Grade real estate other constrction real estate Consumer Total
Pass $353.381 5 189,201 $ 75.343 $220,628 $ 24717 $§ 863,270
fatch 3,031 15,424 73 9,394 112 16,985
Substandard 401 89 1.602 4,233 4 7248
Doubeful — — — — _ —
Total 5358.813 § 204,714 5 77,020 § 234,255 $ 24,833 § 899,635
2017
Commercial Commeraal Real estate Residential
Grade real estate other construction real estate Consumer Total
Pass $£307,969 § 207,888 £ 56,932 $221.949 § 23716 § BlB.454
Watch 8.164 1,842 166 6,660 153 16,985
Substandard 1.962 899 390 3955 44 7.248
Doubtful — _— — — — —

Total £318,095 $ 210.629 § 57488 $ 232,562 § 23,913 $ 842,687
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NOTE 4 - Continued

TheBANK secks to assist customers that arc experiencing financial difficulty by rencgotiating loans within
lending regulations and guidelines. A loan modification is considered a troubled debt restructuring when

a concession has been granted to a borrower experiencing financial difficultics. TheBANK's modifications
generally include interest rate adjustments and amortization and maturity date extensions. These modifications
allow the borrowers short-term cash relicf to allow them to improve their financial condition. TheBANKs
troubled debt restructured loans arc considered impaired and are individually cvaluated for impairment as part
of the reserve for possible loan losses as described above. The following table presents informarion regarding
loan modifications during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 which met the definition of troubled

dd:ﬂ' rv:strucrurings:

Year ended December 31, 2018 Year ended December 31, 2017
Pre- Post- Pre- Post-
modification modification modification modification
outstanding  outstanding outstanding outstanding
Number  reco reco Number recorded recorde
of loans balance balance of loans  balance balance
Commercial:
Real estate — £ — s — — . J— £ —
Orther 1 133 133 — — _
Real estate:
Construction R S m_— R R -
Residential — — — 1 191 191
Consumer — — — — — —
1 5 133 5133 1 5 191 £ 191

The modification for 2018 and 2017 resuled in a change in payment terms. No restructured loans defaulted
during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 within twelve months of their rl:sm.lctu.ring. TheBANK
also had no commitments to cxtend additional credit on any troubled debe restructured loans at December 31,
2018 or 2017

NOTE 5 - BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
A summary of bank premises and equipment at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
Land $ B664 5 D488
Buildings and improvements 39,339 39,331
Furniture, fixtures, and cquipment 21,548 24,278
69,551 73,097
Less accumulated depreciation 41,717 43,130
£ 27,834 § 29,967

Amounts cha_rgcd to noninterest cxpense for dcprcti.ation aggrcga.tcd $1,838 and $2,047 for d‘lcyta.rs ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
TheBANK lcases certain premises and equipment under noncancclable operating lease agreements that expire

at various dates ﬂ]mugh 2032. Minimum rental commitments under these noncancelable opc:rating lease
agreements at December 31, 2018, for cach of the next five years, and in the aggregate, are as follows:

Year ending December 31: Operating Leases
2019 5 607
2020 593
2021 590
2022 464
2023 387
After 2023 355
Total minimum leasc payments required 5 3,19

TheBANK also lcases certain equipment under agreements that are cancelable with 30 to 90 day notice. Total
rent expense for 2018 and 2017 was 5646 and 5636, rtspcctrvcl}
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS

A summary of intcrcst—bcaring dcposits at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows:

2018 2017
Intcrest-bearing transaction accounts £ 830,034 § BG67.566
Savings 102,622 92,772
Time deposits 281,698 314,686

£ 1,214,354 % 1,275,024

Deposits of executive officers and directors and their related interests totaled $16,107 and 517,381 at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Interest expense on deposits for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is summarized as follows:

2018 2017

Interest-bearing transaction accounts & 3496 § 2,983
Savings 50 47
Time deposits 4,714 4,156
& 8.260 § 7186

Time dcposits rnocting or cxcccding the FDIC insurance limit of $250 totaled $19,948 and $31,442 ac
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Following arc the marturitics of time deposits for cach of the next
five years and in the aggregate at December 31, 2018:

Year ending December 31:
2019 $ 125364
2020 57,374
2021 49,521
2022 25913
2023 21,970
Thereafter 1,536

5 281,698

NOTE 7 - INCOME TAXES

The components of Income tax expense for the years ended Diecember 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Current:
Federal § 2,103 3 2611
State 987 696
Deferred 776 1,161
Effect of tax rate changes on deferred taxes - 1,575
§ 3,866 £ 6,043

A reconciliation of expected income tax expense computed by applying the federal statutory rate of 21% in
2018 and 34% in 2017 to income before applicablr: Income taxes, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, 1s as follows:

2018 2017

Expected statutory federal income tax 5 4,247 § 5,664
Tax-cxempt interest and dividend income (952) (1,706)
Bank-owned life insurance policies (227) (368)
State tax, net of related federal benefit 780 459
Effect of tax rate changes on deferred taxes — 1.575
Other, net 18 419

§ 3,866 £ 6,043
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NOTE 7 - Continued

The tax cffects of emporary differences that give risc to significant portions of deferred rax assers and liabilities
at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are presented below:

2018 2017
Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for poss ible loan losses 5§ 3,639 $ 3.632
Deferred compensation 963 740
Other real estate owned 260
Available-for-sale securities 4,601 2,782
Other deferred assets 167 14
Total deferred tax assets 9,370 7428
Deferred tax liabilities:
Premises and equipment (912) (912)
Mortgagc scrvicing rights (137} (738)
Investment gains deferred for tax reporting purposes (692) (408)
Orther deferred liabilities (1,740) (524)
Total deferred tax liabilities (3.481) (2,582)
Net deferred tax assers 5 5,889 § 4,846

The Company is required to provide a valuation reserve on deferred tax assers when it is more likely than
not that some portion of the assets will not be realized. The Company has not established a valuation reserve
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, due to management’s belief that all criteria for recognition have been met,
including the existence of a history of taxes paid sufficient to support the realization of deferred rax asscts.

On December 22, 2017, the United State enacted tax reform legislations through the Tax Chets and fobs Acr,
which significantly changes the existing ULS tax laws, including a reduction in the corporate tax rate from
34% to 21%, as well as other changcs. As a result of enactment of the lcgishtio n, the Company incurred
additional onc-time income tax expense of § 1,575 during the fourth quareer of fiscal 2017, primarily related
to the remeasurement of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities.

NOTE 8 - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Short-term borrowings consist of the following at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017

Funds purchased 5 — £ 4,000
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 56,241 60,138
§ 56,241 § 64,138

TheBANK may purchasc funds on a daily basis from other financial institutions to satisfy short—term liquidity
needs. TheBANK also sells securities under agreements to repurchase. Securities sold under repurchase
agreements arc collateralized by U.S Treasury securitics and obligations of U.S government agencics and
corporations with a net carrying value at December 31, 2018 and 2017 of $68,956 and $72,268, respectively.
The agreements at December 31, 2018 mature every threc months.

The average balances, welghted average interest rates paid, and maximum month-end amounts outstanding for
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the average rates at cach year-end for funds purchased and

SCCI.I.I'itiCS SDIEI undcr repu rcha,sc ElgI'CCITICHl'S arc as FOUOWS:

2018 2017
Avcragc balance % 64,882 5 59,103
Weighted average interest rate paid during the year 1.60% 0.67%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-cnd § 85,584 $ 67,407
Average rate at end of year 1.73% 0.94%

The Company may be required to provide additional collateral securing the borrowings in the event of
principal pay downs, a decrease in the market value of pledged securities, ete. The Company mitigates this risk
by monitoring the market value and liquidity of the collateral and ensuring that it holds a sufficient level of
cligible sccuritics to cover potential increases in collateral requirements.
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, TheBANK had fixed-rate advances uutsta_lﬂing with the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Chicago, maturing as follows:

2018 2017
Due in 2020
Advances £ 6,173 £ 10,205
Weighted average interest rate 1.64% 1.64%
Duc in 2023
Advances S 6,647 b —
Weighted average interest rate 3.04% —

At December 31, 2018, TheBANK maintained a linc of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago
in the amount of 5108,618. TheBANK had an outstanding note balance of $12,820, leaving availability under
this linc in the amount of $95,798. Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago advances are secured under a blanket
agreement which assigns all Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago stock, and one- to four-family mortgage loans
and ccrain commercial loans totaling $168,661.

NOTE 10 - NOTES PAYABLE

In 2017, the Company’ maintained a rcvo]\'ing line of credit note payablc agreement with an unafhliated
financial institution. At December 31, 2017, this revolving line of credir note payable had 2 maximum
availability of $15,000, and required quarterly interest payments at a variable rate of the one-month London
Interbank Operating Rate plus 2.50%. This linc was not used in 2018 and 2017, This linc matured on June
27, 2018 and was not renewed.

The revolving line of credit note payable was secured by all of the common stock of TheBANK, with a book
value of $188,763 at December 31, 2017, and included certain restrictions that, among other things, specify
minimum levels for capital. Any of the financial covenants could be waived at the discretion of the lending
institution. Company management did not belicve the financial covenants would restrict its future operations.

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains defined contribution 401(k) and profit sharing plans to provide reticement benefits

to substantially all of its employees. All employees mecting certain age and service requirements are cligible o
participate in the plans. Under the 401(k) plan, the Company may make discretionary matching contributions
o the plan, up to 50% of the amount ufcmpb}tt contributions, sub]cv:t to certain limitations. Under the

profit sharing plan, the Company may make additional discretionary contributions. Total contributions made
by the Company under these plans were $1,377 and $1,413 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

TheBANK has purchased single-premium split-dollar life insurance policics to provide life insurance benefits
for certain officers. Under the terms of the splie-dollar agreements, death benefits are payable to both TheBANK
and the respective officer’s bencficiary. Each life insurance policy has a cash surrender value feature thar allows
the TheBANK to receive an amount upon cancellation or lapse of the policy. The cash surrender value inereases
monthly, based upon an interest factor (net of mortality), administration, and eardy termination costs that

arc inherent in the contracts. TheBANK has also purchased single-premium life insurance policies to offscta
portion of other employee bencfits costs. Each life insurance policy has a cash surrender value feature thar allows
TheBANK to rcceive an amount in cash upon cancellation or lapsc of the policy. The cash surrender value
increases monthly, based upon an interest factor (net of morality), administration, and carly termination costs
thar are inherent in the contracts. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the benefits payable to officers’ beneficiaries
were 32,892 and $2,743, respectively.

In 2005, TheBANK entered into a deferred compensation phantom stock agreement with an executive officer
in which the executive officer could defer a portion of his annual salary and bonus, up to $100 per year, which
TheBANK would match 25%, with the rotal amount of the deferred compensation and matching contribution
invested in imaginary shares of the Company at the fair valuc of such shares at the time of the imaginary
purchasc. The phantom stock units were then valued annually based on the fair value of the Company's
outstanding shares. The total amount of the salary deferred in 2018 and 2017 was $0, as the executive officer
retired in 2015. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the deferred compensation liability included in other liabilities
in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet was $741 and $1,066, respectively.
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NOTE 11 - Continued
In 2017, TheBANK adopted a salary continuation plan for certain key personnel. TheBANK is accruing the

liability on an annual basis, so the amounts duc to those exceutives is fully accrued at retirement. The amounts
will be paid our post retirement over a ten year period. The charge to expense for the plan was $538 and $380 for
2018 and 2017, rcspcctivdy. as the rcrnaining $615 was rolled over from a prcvious p|an in 2017. The ]iabi“t}r of
$1.533 and $995 ar December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, relating to the plan is included in other liabilirics
on the balance sheet.

NOTE 12 - LITIGATION

During the normal course of business, various legal claims have arisen which, in the opinion of management,
will not result in any material liability to the Company.

NOTE 13 - DISCLOSURES ABOUT FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TI'ICBANK i.SS'LlCS ﬁnancial iI'IStrLlITICI'ItS Wlth OFF-IJ:{].&HCC SI'ICET rlsk il'l l'I'IC l'lCll'lTlEJ Coursc CIF l'I'IC IJ'LISIHCSS DF
mcctlng tl'IC ﬁnancing I'ICCdS OF its CUSTOIMECTS. TI.'ICSC ﬁnancial iI'ISlTI.lITICI'ItS il'iC.l.l.I.dC cammitm:nts- w CX(‘CH-EI
crcdit SI'ICl Stﬂndb}' ||:ttcrs ofcrcdit and may il'l\r"D]VC, o var)’ing CI.EgI‘CC.Sr CIClTlCI'ItS ofcrcdit rlsk il'l CXCCSS ofthc
amounts rccognizcd il'i t]'l.C CDI'IS'D“dEICd baiancc SI'ICCTS. TI'IE cnntractual amaounts of_thosc instrumcnts I'CHCCI

thc cxient OFiI'IVOlVCITICI'It d'IC CDITIPQI'I)’ I'IE.S il'l pa.rticular CI&SSCS oFﬁnancial iI'IStrl.lITICI'ItS.

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the cvent of nonperformance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual
amount of those instruments. TheBANK uses the same credic policies in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for financial instruments included on the balance sheets. Following is a
summary of the Company’s off-balance sheet financial instruments at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Financial instruments for which contractual amounts represent:
Commitments to extend credit 5 203,385 5 190,800
Standby letters of credit 1,019 2,941
§ 204,404 § 193,741

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Of the total commitments to extend credir, fixed-rate loan commitments
were $60,181 and $71,161 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, rcspcctlvcly Commitments gcncra"v have

fixed cxplratlon dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since certain of the
commitments may explire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent furure cash requirements. TheBANK evaluates cach customer's creditworthiness on a case- b} casc
basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by TheBANK upon extension of credit, 1s

based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held varies, but is generally residential or
income-producing commercial property or equipment on which TheBANK generally has a superior lien.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by TheBANK to guarantee the performance of
a customer to a third party. Thosc guarantees are primarily issucd to suppart public and private borrowing
arrangements and, historically, have not been drawn upon. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is

csscntiall}' thc samc as l'l'l.’élt lIlVOl'VCCI in C)(tfl'ldiﬂg lﬂﬂl'l facilitics o Customers.

NOTE 14 - REGULATORY MATTERS
As of December 31, 2018 TheBANK is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by

the federal banking agencies. Failure to mect minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory,
and possible additional discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material
cffect on TheBANK's consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, TheBANK must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of the TheBANKs asscts, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as
calculated under regulatory accounting practices. TheBANK's capital amounts and classifications arc also

subjcct w quaﬁtativc ju.dgmcnt.s I:l} tl.'IC rcgu|ator& abCl'I.ll' CDITI|:I1:II'I1:I'II.'S:| risk wclghtings. a.nd otl‘lcr factor&.
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NOTE 14 - Continued

Quantitative measures cstablished by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require TheBANK to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (sct forth in the table below) of Total capital (as defined in the regulations),
Tier 1 ca.pha] (as defined), and Common Equ]ry Tier 1 capit:;l (as defined) to risk—wcightcd assets (as defined),
and of Tier 1 capital to average asscts (as defined). TheBANK management belicves, as of December 31, 2018,
that TheBANK meets all capita] ac[cquacy n:quircmcnts o which it is subjcct. As of December 31, 2017, the
company and TheBANK were subject to various capital requirements.

As of December 31, 2018, the most recent notification from applicablc n:gulaj:ory authorities l:alacgorizcd
TheBANK as well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized
as a well-capitalized bank, TheBANK must maintain minimum Total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, Common
Equiry Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as sct forth in the table below. There arc no conditions or
events since those notifications that Company management belicves have changed the category of TheBANK.

The aciual capitﬂ] amounis and ratios for the Compa.n)' on a consolidated basis as of December 31, 2017, and
TheBANK on a stand-alone bank basis at December 31, 2018 and 2017, arc presented in the following table:

To Be a Well-Capitalized

For Capital Bank Under Prompt
Actual Adequacy Purposes Corrective Action Provision
Amount Rario Amount Rario Amount Rario
2018
Total capital
(o risk—weighl:ed assets):
TheBANK 5 216,415 18.18% § 95,232 =8.0% § 119040 =10.0%
Tier 1 capital
(o risk—weighted assets):
TheBANK £203,647 17.10% 5§ 71,455 26.0% £ 95273 28.0%
Common equity Tier | capital
(to dsk—weighled assets):
TheBANK 5203.647 17.10% § 53,591 245% § 77410 26.5%
Tier | capital
(to average assets):
TheBANK $203.647 11.25% 5 72414 =4.0% § 90518 25.0%
) To Be a Well-Capitalized
For ital Bank Under Prom
Actual Adequacy Purposes Corrective Action Provision
Amount Rario Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
2017
Total capiral
(to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated 5214054 18352% § 92,451 =8.0% § NA NIA
TheBANK $ 202,330 1754% § 92,295 =8.0% §115368 =10.0%
Tier 1 capital
(to risk—weighl:ﬂi assets):
Consolidated 5201314 1742% § 69,339 26.0% § NA NI/A
TheBANK 5189589 16.43% § 69221 >4.0% $ 92,295 =8.0%
Common equity Tier 1 caplta]
(to risk-weighted assets):
Company §201.314 1742% § 52,004 245% § N/A N/A
TheBANK 5189589 16.43% 5 51,916 >4.5% § 74,989 26.5%
Tier 1 capitaf
(to average assets):
Consolidated $201,314 10.76% 8 74,853 >4.0% £ N/A N/A
TheBANK $189,589 10.13% 5 74,853 =4.0% § 57.684 =5.0%
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NOTE 14 - Continued

The above minimum capiral requirements cxclude the capital conservation buffer required to avoid limitations
on capital distributions, including dividend payments and certain discretionary bonus payments to exccutive
officers. The capital conscrvation buffer is being phased in from 0.0% for 2015 to 2.5% by 2019. The capital
conscrvation buffer was 1.875% and 1.25% at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The
net unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale securitics is not incdluded in computing regulatory capital.

Federal Regulations do not permit cash dividend payments if the Bank's capital would be reduced below the

amount ofthc ]Tl]]'l]]TlU.ﬂ} caplta] rl:\quirtmrnis.

Basel III Capital Rules In July 2013, the three federal bank regulatory agencies jointly published final

rules (the Basel I11 Capital Rules) establishing a new comprehensive capital framework for ULS. banking
organizations. The rules implement the Bascl Committec’s December 2010 framework known as “Basdl

III" for strengthening international capital standards as weell as certain provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act.
These rules substantially revise the risk-based capital requirements applicable to bank holding companics and
depository institutions, compared to the current ULS. risk-based capital rules. The Bascl I11 Capital Rules
definc the components of capiral and address other issucs affecring the numerator in banking institutions’
regulatory capital ratios. These rules also address risk weights and other issues affecting the denominator in
banking institutions’ regulatory capital ratios and replace the existing risk-weighting approach with a more
risk-sensitive approach. The Basel I Capital Rules were effective for the Company on January 1, 2015 (subject
to a four-ycar phasc-in period).

The Bascl 11T Capital Rules, among other things, (i) introduce a new capital measure called “Common Equity
Tier 1" (CET1), (1) spccify that Tier 1 l:a.pitnl consist of CET1 and “Additional Tier 1 Capltal” INSCrUments
mecting specified requirements, (ii1) define CET1 narrowly by requiring that most deductions/adjustments to
regulatory capital measurcs be made to CET1 and not to the other components of capiral and (iv) expand the
scope of the deductions/adjustments as compared to existing regulations.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Cﬂmpa.ny has considered all events occurring subscqucnt to December 31, 2018, for pos.sib]c disclosure
through March 26, 2019, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

In August, 2018, the Company signed a definitive agreement with First Busey Corporation in which First
Bust}' Corpomtian would al:quilt all of the uuista.nding shares of the Compan}-‘. During 2018, the board

of directors of the Company and First Buscy Corporation cach unanimously approved a transaction that
resulted in the merger of the Company with and into First Buscy Corporation. The merger was effective as
of the closc of business January 31, 2019. First Buscy Corporation is the surviving bank holding company

in the merger. As of the date of the merger, cach issucd and outstanding share of the Company’s common
stock was converted into the night to reccive $111.53 in cash and 8.2067 sharcs of First Buscy commeon stock,
with cash paid in licu of fractional shares. Current First Buscy stockholders own approximately 8.9% of the
commen stock of the combined company, and current Company stockholders own approximately 12.1% of
the ourstanding shares of the combined company.



E Main Office » 330 West Vandalia « Edwardsville, IL 62025

Of Edwardsvmg Member FRIC Phone 618/656-0057 = www.4thebank.com

March 26, 2019

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Statement of Management's Responsibilities

The management of TheBANK of Edwardsville (TheBANK) is responsible for preparing TheBANK's
annual financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; for establishing
and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting, including
controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the instructions of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for Call Reports filed with the FDIC; and for complying
with the federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and the federal and state laws and
regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions.

Management's Assessment of Compliance With Designated Laws and Regulations

The management of TheBANK has assessed TheBANK's compliance with the federal laws and regulations
periaining to insider loans and the federal and state laws and regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions
during the year that ended on December 31, 2018. Based upon its assessment, management has concluded
that TheBANK complied with the federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider loans and the federal
and state laws and regulations pertaining to dividend restrictions during the year that ended on December
31,2018.

Management's Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

TheBANK's internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with
governance, management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of reliable financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and financial statements for
regulatory reporting purposes, ie., Reports of Condition and Income filed with the FDIC. TheBANK's
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of TheBANK; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and financial statements for regulatory reporting purposes, and
that receipts and expenditures of TheBANK are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of TheBANK; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention, or
timely detection and correction of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of TheBANK's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or detect and
correct misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intermal control over financial
reporting including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements. Management assessed
the effectiveness of TheBANK’s internal control over financial reporting, including controls over the
preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the instructions for the Call Report filed
with the FDIC, as of December 31, 2018, based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Because of the
material weakness noted below, management determined TheBANK’s intermal control over financial



reporting, including controls over the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the
instructions for the Call Report filed with the FDIC, was not effective as of December 31, 2018.

As of year-end, the controls surrounding the preparation and management review as well as Board review of
the Allowance for Loan Losses calculation were not operating effectively. These controls as stated in the
internal control testing are to be completed quarterly and were not completed as of the December 31, 2018
reporting period.

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, including controls over
the preparation of regulatory financial statements in accordance with the instructions for Call Reports filed with
the FDIC, as of December 31, 2018, has been audited by an independent public accounting firm, as stated in their
report dated March_26__, 2019.

TheBANK of Edwardsville

l
| C)w

Kevin M. Powers
President and Chief Executive Officer

A

Robert M. Parker
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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BKD, LLP

Certified Public Accountants
211 North Broadway, Suite 600
St. Louis, Missouri 63102

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the internal control over financial reporting of TheBANK
of Edwardsville (TheBANK) as of December 31, 2018 for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
TheBANK’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 based on the Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your audit:

2.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.

We have performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control over financial reporting
based on the [nternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We have not used the audit procedures you performed during your audit of internal control over financial
reporting or the financial statements as part of the basis for our assertion of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting.

Because of the material weakness surrounding the preparation and management review as well as Board review
of the allowance for loan loss calculation as of December 31, 2018, TheBANKs internal control over financial
reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2018.

We have disclosed to you all deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting,
including separately disclosing to you all such deficiencies that we believe to be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting.

We have no knowledge of any material fraud or suspected fraud affecting TheBANK, or any fraud or suspected
fraud involving senior management or management or other employees who have a significant role in
TheBANK s internal control over financial reporting,.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses that you identified during your previous engagement and
communicated to management and those charged with governance have been resolved.

There have been no changes in internal control over financial reporting and other events subsequent to
December 31, 2018 that might significantly affect internal control.

Kevin M. Powers
President and Chief Executive Officer

AT A

Robert M. Parker
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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March 26, 2019

Statement of Management’'s Responsibilities

The management of THE BANC ED CORP. (the “Company”) is responsible for preparing the
Company’s annual financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles; for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and
procedures for financial reporting, including controls over the preparation of regulatory
financial statements in accordance with the instructions for the Consoclidated Financial
Statements for Bank Holding Companies (Form FR Y-9C) and Report of Condition and Income
(Call Report); and for complying with the Federal laws and regulations pertaining to insider
loans and the Federal and, if applicable, State laws and regulations pertaining to dividend
restrictions. The following subsidiary institutions of the Company that are subject to Part 363
are included in this statement of management’s responsibilities: [The Bank of Edwardsville.]

THE BANC ED CORP.

M /‘% /g)\a-a u 5/9e )19

Mark S. Shashek Date
Chairman and Assistant Treasurer

- 3)26/i%
William S. Alexander Date
President and Assistant Secretary

NOTE: For 2018 the company filed Form Y-9C through June 30, 2018, then filed Y-95P for
December 31, 2018.



Exhibit 99.2
SELECTED UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables show selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information about the financial condition and results of operations of First
Busey Corporation (“First Busey”), including per share data, after giving effect to the merger with The Banc Ed Corp. (“Banc Ed”) and other pro forma adjustments. The
selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information assumes that the merger is accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting for business
combinations in accordance with GAAP, and that the assets and liabilities of Banc Ed will be recorded by First Busey at their respective fair values as of the date the merger
is completed. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet gives effect to the transaction as if the transaction had occurred on December 31, 2018. The
unaudited pro forma condensed combined income statement for the year ended December 31, 2018 gives effect to the transaction as if the transaction had become effective
on January 1, 2018.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is presented for illustrative purposes only and does not indicate the financial results of the
combined company had the companies actually been combined at the beginning of each period presented. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial
information also does not consider any expense efficiencies, increased revenue or other potential financial benefits of the merger. The fair values are preliminary estimates as
of the date hereof and actual amounts are still in the process of being finalized. Fair values are subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date as additional
information regarding the closing date fair values becomes available.




Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities

Loans held for sale

Loans

Allowance for loan losses

Premises and equipment, net

Goodwill

Core deposit and other intangible assets, net
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Deposits
Borrowings
Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Common stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Book value per common share

Shares outstanding

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2018
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

First Busey The Banc Ed Pro Forma
Corporation Corp. Adjustments

$ 239,973 $ 42,547 $ (31,400)

1,312,514 725,827 1,522

25,895 2,554 -

5,568,428 899,569 (16,898)

(50,648) (12,768) 12,768

117,672 27,834 4,237

267,685 5,858 36,967

32,873 - 32,616

187,965 67,008 (2,769)

$ 7,702,357 $ 1,758,429 $ 37,043

$ 6,249,321 $ 1,473,538 $ 4,774

405,637 69,061 60,071

52,435 14,353 29,451

6,707,393 1,556,952 $ 94,296

994,964 201,477 (57,253)

$ 7,702,357 $ 1,758,429 $ 37,043
$20.36 $245.86

48,875 819 5,906
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Pro Forma
Combined

$ 251,120
2,039,863
28,449
6,451,099
(50,648)
149,743
310,510
65,489
252,204

$ 9,497,829

$7,727,633
534,769
96,239

8,358,641

1,139,188

$9,497,829

$20.49
55,600




Exhibit 99.2

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Income for the
Year Ended December 31, 2018
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

First Busey The Banc Ed Pro Forma Pro Forma

Corporation Corp. Adjustments Combined
Total interest income $ 286,033 $ 53,762 $ 8,536 (14) $ 348,331
Total interest expense 44,627 9,575 725 (15)(16) 54,927
Net interest income 241,406 44,187 7,811 293,404
Provision for loan losses 4,429 - - 4,429
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 236,977 44,187 7,811 288,975
Non-interest income 89,993 28,775 - 118,768
Non-interest expense 193,043 52,739 5,427 17) 251,209
Income before income taxes 133,927 20,223 2,384 156,534
Income taxes 34,999 3,866 620 (18) 39,485
Net income $ 98,928 $ 16,357 1,764 $ 117,049
Basic $2.02 $20.02 $2.14
Diluted $2.01 $20.02 $2.12
Average shares for basic earnings per share 48,854 817 5,906 54,760
Average shares for diluted earnings per share 49,215 817 5,906 (13) 55,121

Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet and Statement of Income
Note 1—Basis of Presentation

On January 31, 2019, First Busey Corporation (“First Busey”), completed its merger with The Banc Ed Corp. (“Banc Ed”). At the effective time of the merger, each share of
Banc Ed common stock converted to the right to receive 8.2067 shares of common stock of First Busey and $111.53 in cash. The acquisition is accounted for under the
acquisition method of accounting and, accordingly, the assets and liabilities of Banc Ed presented in these pro forma condensed combined financial statements have been
adjusted to their estimated fair values based upon conditions as of the merger date and as if the transaction had been effective on January 1, 2018 for statement of income
data. Since these are pro forma statements, we cannot assure that the amounts reflected in these financial statements would have been representative of the actual amounts
earned had the companies been combined on that date. The fair values are estimates as of the date hereof and actual amounts are still in the process of being finalized. Fair
values are subject to refinement for up to one year after the closing date as additional information regarding the closing date fair values becomes available.

Note 2—Pro Forma Adjustments Footnotes

(1)  To record outlay of $31.4 million in cash on hand to fund approximately 35% of the cash portion of merger consideration.

(2)  To adjust Banc Ed’s interest-earning assets to approximate fair value, consisting of an increase to investments of $1.5 million and a decrease to loans of $16.9 million.
The investment fair value adjustment is expected to be accreted over the life of the investments. The loan fair value adjustment includes a $16.9 million discount to

adjust for market interest rates and credit deterioration of the acquired portfolio net of $64 thousand adjustment of net deferred loan fees. $16.8 million is expected to
be accreted over an estimated 4.5 year remaining life of the respective loans in a manner that approximates level yield.
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To eliminate Banc Ed’s allowance for loan losses of $12.8 million.

To record the fair value adjustment to increase premises and equipment by $4.2 million. The increase in depreciation expense will be recorded using the straight-line
method over the estimated remaining useful life of each asset adjusted.

To record goodwill of $42.8 million resulting from the difference between the purchase price and identifiable net assets as follows:

(dollars in thousands)

Total Purchase Price $ 257,915
Allocated to:

Historical book value of Banc Ed’s assets and liabilities 201,477
Adjustments to record assets and liabilities at fair value:

Investments, fair value adjustment 1,522
Portfolio loans, fair value adjustment (16,898)
Eliminate Banc Ed'’s allowance for loan losses 12,768
Premises and equipment, fair value adjustment 4,237
Eliminate Banc Ed's goodwill (5,858)
Core deposit intangible asset 27,226
Wealth intangible asset 5,390
Other real estate owned, fair value adjustment 96
Deposit, fair value interest rate adjustment (4,774)
Borrowings, fair value adjustment (71)
Deferred taxes (14,231)
Other assets, fair value adjustment 4,557
Other liabilities, fair value adjustment (351) |
Resulting goodwill $ 42,825

To record wealth and core deposit intangible assets of $5.4 million and $27.2 million, respectively. Gross amounts will be amortized over a 10 year estimated useful
life.

To record the fair value adjustment to increase other real estate owned by $96 thousand, increase the fair value of mortgage servicing rights by $4.5 million, increase
other assets by $38 thousand and record a deferred tax liability of $14.2 million relate to purchase accounting adjustments. Additionally, to record a $6.8 million
deferred tax asset related to estimated transaction costs.

To adjust Banc Ed’s time deposits to fair value by an increase to time deposits of $4.8 million. Amount to be accreted over the remaining life in a manner that
approximates the level yield method.

To adjust Banc Ed’s borrowings to fair value by an increase to FHLB advances of $71 thousand. Amount to be accreted over the 3 year remaining life of the debt in a
manner that approximates the level yield method. Additionally, to record borrowings of $60.0 million used to fund the cash portion of the merger consideration. The
$60.0 million term loan has a maturity date of November 30, 2023 with an annual interest rate of 1.50% plus the one-month LIBOR rate.
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Exhibit 99.2
To record $351 thousand of unrecognized liabilities acquired.
To record accrual of estimated transaction costs of $29.1 million for Banc Ed and First Busey. The net deferred tax asset related to these estimated transaction costs is
included in footnote 7. The estimated transaction costs of $29.1 million, net of tax of $6.8 million, are estimated at $11.7 million for Banc Ed and $10.6 million for
First Busey. Banc Ed’s significant costs include $2.6 million of professional fees and $8.0 million of employee related costs, net of tax. First Busey’s significant costs
include $1.1 million of professional fees and $7.1 million of vendor termination costs, net of tax. For purposes of the pro forma presentation, the aggregate amount of

these transaction costs are excluded from the pro forma income statements, as consistent with applicable guidance.

To eliminate Banc Ed’s stockholders’ equity of $201.4 million and record the purchase price of $257.9 million. The adjustment also includes a $22.3 million decrease
in retained earnings to record transaction costs, net of tax.

To record the issuance of 6.7 million shares of First Busey’s common stock at $24.76 per share totaling $166.5 million and $91.4 million in cash in exchange for 819
thousand shares of Banc Ed stock.

To reverse the investment premium amortization recognized by Banc Ed of $3.1 million and record the estimated discount accretion of $1.7 million. Additionally, to
record the accretion of the discount on the loan portfolio of $3.7 million.

To record accretion on interest rate adjustment on time deposits and FHLB advances of $1.7 million and $24 thousand, respectively.
To record interest expense on borrowings of $2.4 million used to fund the cash portion of the merger consideration.

To record amortization of mortgage servicing rights, wealth intangible and core deposit intangible. Additionally, to record increase in depreciation expense on
premises and equipment.

To record the tax effect of adjustments at an effective rate of 26.00%.




